Donations to and Purchases for the Museum, 1968-9

Donations

1. Nine flakes and rough-outs from the stone axe factory site at Creag na Caillich, near Killin, Perth-
shire (illustrated in Studies in Ancient Europe, 1968). By P. R. RITCHIE, F.S.A.SCOT.
2. Specimens from the axe factory at Mynydd Rhiw, Caernarvonshire. By PREHISTORIC SOCIETY per
C. H. HOULDER, F.S.A.
Stone axehead found at Binn Farm, Glenfarg, Perthshire. By R. CHARLESTON, Loanhead.
Polished flint adze found at Castlesteads, Dalkeith, Midlothian. By Mrs WRIGLEY, Castlesteads.
Sherds of neolithic and early bronze age pottery and trimmed flint flake, from a cairn at Pitglassie,
Aberdeenshire (fig. 1). By A. FENTON, F.S.A.SCOT.
6. Two leaf-shaped and two hollow-based arrowheads of flint, and one leaf-shaped of pitch-stone (fig. 2),
aflat bronze axe 5-9 in. long, and other artifacts, from sites in Glenrickard Forest, Arran, and Ardfin,
Jura. By the ForesTry CommissioN (Conservator for West Scotland). ’
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FiG. 3.

. Beaker (fig. 3), found in a cist by the shore of Loch More, West Sutherland (N.G.R. NC 336362). By

R. Ross, Achriesgill, Lairg.

. Fragment of large flint flake, from the same cist at Moleigh, Loch Nell, Argyll, in which a bronze

dagger was found (Proc. Soc. Antig. Scot. ¢ (1967-8), 190-2). By T. CorsoN AND Co., Oban.

. Flints from Rumbleton Law Farm, Greenlaw, Berwickshire. By L. Grieve, Edinburgh.

. Flint scraper from Thomanean Farm, Kinross-shire. By G. S. GUTHRIE, Kinross.

. Flint tool, from Seafield, Corriegills, Arran. By F. MACKELVIE, Arran.

. Leaf-shaped flint arrowhead, from Luce Sands, Wigtownshire. By W. WiLsoN, Loanhead.

. Two sharpened animal teeth from a cave at Covesea, Moray. By G. L. DARGE, Elgin.

. Stone ploughshare, Iron Age sherd, from Muirskirk, Fetlar, Shetland (N.G.R. HU 648910). By

J. Courrts, Fetlar.

. Quernstone with slot for handle, found at Seton Court, Gullane, East Lothian. By Mrs G. S, Hirca-

MAN, Gullane.

Slate spindle whorl, from Lothianburn, Midlothian. By A. MrrcHeLL, Lothianburn.

Large collection of surface finds from Fife, Angus, Perthshire and Berwickshire, including prehistoric
flints and pottery, Roman objects from Cardean fort, medieval and later sherds. By D. HENDERSON,
F.S.A.SCOT.

Sherds of Roman and native pottery, fragment of quernstone, segment of jet armlet, worked pieces of
cannel coal, from Traprain Law, East Lothian; pieces of two sandstone columns, found 1946, at
Inveresk Roman Fort, Midlothian (fig. 4), pottery and stone object from the earth-house at
Hatston Airfield, Orkney (Proc. Soc. Antig. Scot. Lxxxim, 236); pottery, thought to be from the
Knap of Howar, Papa Westray, Orkney (Proc. Soc. Antig. Scot., Lxx1, 309); two quern-stones from
one of the Glenelg brochs, Inverness; six coins and a counter from Jarlshof, Shetland ; medieval floor
tiles and pottery (see Trans. Dumfriesshire Galloway Natur. Hist. Antig. Soc., xx1x (1950-1)); later
glazed earthenware, medieval and later glass, and medieval metalwork, including iron knives, a
bronze candlestick, lead counters and coins, from Glenluce Abbey, Wigtownshire; post-medieval
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objects from Culross Palace, Fife; an iron axehead, medieval bronze fragments and other objects
from Bothwell Castle, Lanarkshire; medieval and later pottery, glass and objects of metal, wood
and stone from Aberdour Castle, Fife; wooden bed-ends from Crichton Castle, Midlothian
(Proc. Soc. Antiq. Scot., Lxxx1x) 451); and three wooden quaichs, part of a leather shoe, also
pottery and glass etc. from Abbey Strand, Edinburgh. By the MINISTRY OF PUBLIC BUILDING AND
Works, Edinburgh.

Samian sherd and mortarium shred stamped Albinus, surface finds from the Roman legionary fortress,
Inchtuthil, Perthshire. By C. M. H. MILLAR, F.S.A.SCOT.

Dupondius of Domitian or Trajan, found at Inveresk, Midlothian (N.G.R. NT 347711). By
J* MCNAIR, Inveresk, per DR J. K. St JOSEPH, F.S.A.SCOT.

Pottery, and piece of a crucible, from a sand-dune midden at Coll, Isle of Lewis. By D. A. STEWART,
Invergordon. :

Upper quernstone from Dun Cuier, Isle of Barra (Proc. Soc. Antig. Scot. Lxxx1x, 326, fig. 16.54).
By THE MACNEIL OF BARRAH, F.S.A.SCOT., per Mrs H. N. YOUNG, F.5.A.SCOT.

Upper quernstone, found near long cist burials in December 1968. By the CAPTAIN AND MEMBERS OF
GULLANE GoLF CLUB, East Lothian,

Six globular jet beads with spiral fluting and a bronze buckle, all probably medieval, from the cairn
at Kintraw, Argyll (Proc. Soc. Antig. Scot xcix, 57). By H. Mackig, Kilmartin, per D. D. A.
SIMPSON, F.S.A.SCOT.

. Medieval pottery sherds from Springwood Park, Kelso, Roxburghshire. By J. W. ELLIOT, F.S.A.SCOT.
. Round-based vessel found in a structure on Vallay, North Uist. By J. DUNN, Co. Antrim.
. Carved oak panel from Dumfriesshire — a heart over crossed arrows over fenestrations; late fifteenth-

early sixteenth century (Proc Soc. Antig. Scot. LX, 390, No. 2). By Dr J. S. RICHARDSON, F.S5.A.SCOT.

. Communion Tokens (Monzie 1713 and another), given in memory of Dr Charles W. Somerville.

By Mrs J. L. SoMeRVILLE, Edinburgh.

. Groat of James V. By A. E. TRUCKELL, F.S.A.SCOT.

. Two coins of Charles I. By Lt.-Colonel J. K. R. MURRAY, Cheltenham.

. Set of U.K. base metal coins 1964-71. By the DepuTy MASTER OF THE ROYAL MINT.

. Glasgow Corporation Tramways, two halfpenny tokens for the Blind. By F. MARSHALL, Edinburgh.
. Gold medal presented by the Fisheries Board at the International Fisheries Exhibition in London in

1883. By the DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES FOR SCOTLAND, Edinburgh.

. Bronze medallion commemorating the second centenary of the Encyclopaedia Britannica, 1968. By

ENCYCLOPAEDIA BRITANNICA INTERNATIONAL LTD., London.

Brass coin weight. By T. THOMSON, Athelstaneford.

Jubilee medal (1897) and two Prestonpans Coronation medals (1902 and 1911); jet earrings and
wooden souvenirs. By Miss C. RITCHIE, Prestonpans.

A collection of spectacles and cases, ranging from steel spectacles of about 1720 to plastic framed
spectacles of 1945. By JouN TroTTER & Co., Edinburgh.

A collection of the donor’s family costume and accessories. By Miss J. PETRIE, South Croydon.

Items of dress, uniform and personal ornament by the Rev. W. J. ANDERSON, Edinburgh; W. BALLAN-
TYNE, Edinburgh; Miss C. CAMPBELL, Edinburgh ; G. R. CAMPBELL, Lasswade; Mrs 1. CARTWRIGHT,
Lincolnshire; Miss M. H. DAGG, Newcastleton; D. J. M. EDwARD Edinburgh; Mrs FRAZER,
Edinburgh; Captain J. MACKENZIE-GRIEVE, R.N. (Retd.), ToLLESHUNT D’ARCY; Representatives
of the late Miss J. J. SimpsoN of Fala Dam, Midlothian, per Messrs GRAY, MUIRHEAD AND CAR-
MICHAEL, Dalkeith; Dr A. E. STEVENsSON, Sanquhar; Mrs B. M. B. STEVENsON, Edinburgh; Mrs
SUTHERLAND, Halkirk; Miss M. B, TAYLOR, Banbury; Mrs E. TELFER, Newcastleton; Miss A. J. A.
WaTtsoN, Edinburgh.

. Silver ladle by R. Gray & Son, Glasgow, 1832. Given in memory of the Rev. WiLLiam SwAN, D.D.,

of South Leith, by his family, per Mrs J. A. CowLEY, Edinburgh.

An Edinburgh tuck purse of morocco leather, made by the donor’s father. By Miss A. M, KENNETH,
Edinburgh.

Examples of glass engraved by E. Lerche (mid-late nineteenth century) and glass and pottery en-
graved by his son S. Lerche. By Miss M. S. LERCHE, Alloa.

Objects of domestic use and ornament by Miss A. S. ArTKEN, Edinburgh; Miss Brockig, Edinburgh;
Mrs J. A. CowLey, Edinburgh; G. B. DaLLAs, Edinburgh; Mr HoLLowAy, Cambuslang; A.
KENNEDY, F.5.A.SCOT.; D. LETHAM, Edinburgh; Miss C. A. Peppie, Chermside, Brisbane; J. R.
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RiLEY, Kirkcaldy; Mrs G. Row-FoGo, Dunblane; G. SHEPHERD, Edinburgh; Miss L. M. SLOAN,
Edinburgh; Mrs STEwART, Edinburgh; G. A. STRACHAN, Edinburgh; C. Swan, Edinburgh.

44. Two late nineteenth-century perambulators. By Miss M. PICKSTONE, Dundee.

45. Eight tools used by the donor and others in engraving maps at John Bartholomew & Son Ltd.
Edinburgh; also a piece of copper engraved by him. By D. WessTER, Edinburgh.

46. Grocer’s vanman’s leather bag and wallet, for money. By J. PeTrIE, Keith, Banffshire.

47. Relics from St Kilda by Miss G. FARLEY, Edinburgh; Dr J. EGGeLING, Edinburgh.

48. Loom from Westray, Orkney. By J. TURrrus, Orkney.

49. Photographs, documents etc, by Dr D. HurcHisoN, Musselburgh; the Rev. Father CHArLES C.
MCcGREGOR, Aberdeen; S. MAXWELL, F.8.A.SCOT.; D. MUrison, Edinburgh; R. B. K. STEVENSON.
F.S.A.SCOT.

50. Pair of iron quoits, weighing 17 1b. By J. JARDINE, Dumfries.

51. Ball used in Kirkwall at the New Year’s Day Ba’, 1914 (J. D. M. Robertson, Uppies and Doonies).
By J. D. M. RoBERTSON, Kirkwall, Orkney.

52. American doll of maize straw. By Miss I. McALPIN, Edinburgh.

53. Otter board for poaching trout. By R. RICHARDSON, Aylesbury.

54. Fisherman’s lug-spade, used 1900-45 in connection with Moray Firth line-fishing. By Miss BARBARA
MEIN, Nairn.

55. An American Oliver plough, two framed photographs of the Glasgow tractor, a number of catalogues
and other records of the firm of John Wallace & Sons Ltd. By R. G. BrysoN, Maybole.

56. Farm implements and equipment by THE SCHOOL OF AGRICULTURE, Edinburgh; G. E. DAVIDSON,
Coldingham; Colonel Forses, Dalry; G. H. T. GuiLDp, Moffat; R. KENNEDY, Aberfeldy; R. LAING,
Jedburgh; A. MAcKeNzIE, Invergordon; L. D. MacMILLAN, Edinburgh; J. P. NiveN & Co., Duns;
J. RED, Alness; D. RipDELL, Ormiston; W. L. Scort & SoN, Duns; J. SmitH, Laurieston; The
CouNTESs OF SUTHERLAND ; R. TRAINER, Gullane, A. & T. WIGHTMAN, Berwick-on-Tweed.

57. Peat cutting equipment, including spades and peat samples by Mr MACKEY, Ardross; Managers,
ScorTisH MALT DisTiLLERS LTD., Aberlour, Elgin and Glenlessie; A. TomTer, Winchburgh;
R. WaLKER, Lasswade.

58. Draining tiles. By the CouNTY CLERK, CLACKMANNANSHIRE, per Mr W. CAMPBELL.

59. Samples of bricks (Sutherland 1872-1968 and Newbattle 1862) by Mrs M. M. BANNERMAN, Brora;
R. D. MELROSE, Newtongrange; S. SUTHERLAND, Golspie.

Purchases

Stone axe-hammer, from Bassendean, Gordon, Berwickshire.

Grindstone, Aberdeenshire.

Silver groat and one-third groat, James V.

Silver coins, Charles I (12), Charles II (14) and William 1I.

Copper coins, Charles I and Charles II.

Medals, Queen Mary 1689, George VI coronation.

Collection of recent medals, and plastic tokens.

Eighteenth-century firchair, Morayshire.

Jacobite snuff box with concealed enamel miniature of Prince Charles Edward, also silver wing-funnel
c. 1825.

Linen damask table cloth 1770.

Mahogany games and multi-purpose table (‘polyterpic table’) incorporating a ‘camera obscura’ with
views of Rome, made by Buchanan, Greenock, 1817, also from the same source, an ivory snuff mull
1710, cloth-printing block, fireback, music medals, spoons and a miniature.

Articles of dress (two sources).

Pottery mug and a silver agriculture medal.

Flail, Orkney.

Large meal-girnel of wood.

Replica of an eighteenth-century plough sock.

Replica of Shetland water-wheel.

Peat barrow (new).
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(The following silver is Edinburgh-made unless noted)

Three-lugged quaich c. 1730-50 (Edward Lothian), engraved inside with Fortune on a wheel, and mottoes
A Hundred to One, Scob as i. (Contributed to by the Endowment Fund including the Theodore Stewart
and Mrs K. E. C. Grieve Bequests.)

Pair of shell-shaped soup ladles 1763.

Sugar basket 1772, and six spoons Banff, ¢. 1785.

Cake server 1775.

Teaspoons c¢. 1775, spoons and ladle, Aberdeen ¢. 1820-30.

Two Onslow pattern serving spoons 1783, teaspoon Perth ¢. 1800.

Salver presented to Dr J. Y. Simpson 1844.

Nutmeg grater 1839.

Teapot 1776 also a carved dirk handle, seventeenth century, and a late eighteenth-century mantelpiece.

Teapot 1865, tablespoon Aberdeen c. 1785, spoons c¢. 1790, Glasgow?; also writing medal, bezique
scorers and a penknife-hone.

Silver bowl 1900.
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Donations

Privy Council Registers [facsimile] XII 1640-45; Calendar of Inquisitions. Miscellaneous; Calendar of
Memoranda Rolls (Exchequer). By THE PusLIC RECORD OFFICE.

Material on communications; Material relating to the Highlands and Islands; Material on art and architec-
ture, Lists 1 & 2; Business archives, List No. 2. By THE ScOTTISH RECORD OFFICE.

Visiting museums. A. White. By THE PUBLISHER.

Prehistoric art in Europe. N. K. Sandars. By THE PUBLISHER.

Prehistoric animals and their hunters. 1. W. Cornwall. By THE PUBLISHER.

Bronze age metalwork in N. England 1000-700 B.C. C. Burgess. By THE AUTHOR.

The Celtic realms. M. Dillon and N. K. Chadwick. By THE PUBLISHER.

Early Iron Age art in Wales. By THE NATIONAL MUSEUM OF WALES.

Ancient and medieval sculptured stones of Islay. W. D. Lamont. By THE AUTHOR.

Some light on the past round Glenrothes. W. G. Rowntree Bodie. By THE AUTHOR.

The Scottish coinage (rev. ed. with supplement, 1967). I. H. Stewart. By THE AUTHOR.

Historical Cumbernauld. By CUMBERNAULD HISTORICAL SOCIETY.

Girvan 1668-1968. By Mr A. KENNEDY.

Burgh of Saltcoats Quatercentenary 1528-1928. By MR O. KELLY.

Histories of the villages of Tranent, Currie, Arden (Loch Lomond), Ewes, Drumelzier and Eddleston. By
ScoTTisH WOMEN’S RURAL INSTITUTES.

Some Scottish quaichs, Vol. 2. R. McClenahan. By THE AUTHOR. :

Hall marks on Dublin silver, 1730-1772. By THE NATIONAL MUSEUM OF IRELAND.

Charles Rennie Mackintosh, 1868-1928 (Edinburgh International Festival, 1968, Exhib. cat.). By THE
ArTs CouNcIL.

Biggar coursing club, inst. 1821, By MR S. MAXWELL.

Farming in Scotland. R. Urquhart. By SCOTSMAN PUBLICATIONS LTD.

Offprints, catalogues, reports etc., were received from, among others:

A. Henshall, O. Kelly, A. Kennedy, S. Maxwell, A. Nilson, S. Piggott, A. Small, R. B. K. Stevenson,
Bellona Publications, British Broadcasting Corporation, Ciba Ltd., Colonial Williamsburg, Edinburgh
Corporation, Glasgow Museum and Art Gallery Association, Historical Manuscripts Commission,
Musée de Costume, Paris, National Galleries of Scotland, National Museum, Warsaw, National Trust
for Scotland, Public Record Office, Scottish Traction Engine Society, Society of Friends of Brechin
Cathedral, Society of Friends of Dunblane Cathedral, Watford and SW. Herts. Archaeological Society,
and 13 museums in Britain.

Purchases

The Fifth Viking Congress, Torshavn, 1965. B. Niclasen (ed.).

Atti della VIII & IX Riunione Scientifica (Instituto Italiano Preistoria & Prostostoria).

British Archaeological Abstracts, Vol. 1. '

Archaeological Review, 1966, 1967, 1968 (C.B.A. Groups 12 & 13).

East Riding Archaeologist, Vol. 1.

Bulletin of the Board of Celtic Studies, Vol. 1, pt. 1 (1941).

Norwegian Archaeological Review, 1968, 1.

Studies in ancient Europe: essays presented to Stuart Piggott. J. M. Coles and D. D. A. Simpson (eds.).
Archdologische feldmethode. G. T. Schwartz.

298
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Animal bones in archaeology. M. L. Ryder.
Topferei in Afrika. D. Drost.
The Stone age hunters. G. Clark.
Prehistoric Britain. B. Green and A. Sorrell.
Skara Brae [replacement copy]. V. G. Childe.
Excavations at Clickhimin, Shetland. J. R. C. Hamilton.
The Druids. S. Piggott.
Finland. E. Kivikoski.
Norway. A. Hagen.
Pagan Scandinavia. H. R. Ellis Davidson.
Romania. D. Berciu.
Spain and Portugal. H. N. Savory.
Prehistoria de las Balears. J. Mascard Pasarius.
Corded ware and globular amphorae north-east of the Carpathians. T. Sulimirski.
Das Wagengrab der jung-vorrom. Eisenzeit von Husby. K. Raddatz.
Tarquinia, Villanovans and the early Etruscans (2 volumes). H. Hencken.
Britain in the Roman Empire. J. Liversidge.
The north-west frontier of Rome. D, Divine.
Handbook to the Roman Wall (12th ed.). J. Collingwood Bruce.
The excavation of Roman and medieval London. W. F. Grimes.
A Roman ship from Blackfriars (London, Guildhall Museum). P. V. Marsden.
Fishbourne: a Roman palace. B. Cunliffe (ed.).
Richborough (Society of Antiquaries of London Research Committee Reports, No. 23). B. Cunliffe (ed.).
Excavations at Faversham, 1965. B. Philp.
Hod Hill (Vol. 2). L. A. Richmond.
Romano-British cemetery at Trentholme Drive, York. L. P. Wenham.
Gallo-Roman pottery from Southampton and the distribution of Terra nigra in Gt. Britain. G. Rogers and
L. Laing.
Studien zu den militargrenzen Roms (Vortréige des 6. Internationalen Limeskongress).
Epigraphische Studien, Vols. 1-4.
Die rangordnung des Romischen heeres (2. Aufl.). A. von Domaszewski.
Lampen — aus Vindobona (Romische Limes in Oesterreich, 22). A. Neumann.
Roman society in Gaul in the Merovingian age. S. Dill.
The Sutton Hoo ship burial. R. L. S. Bruce-Mitford.
Christianity in Britain, 300-700 A.D. M. W. Barley and R. P. C. Hanson.
The Viking. H. Arbman (ed.).
Everyday life in the Viking age. J. Simpson.
Horte als Geschichtsquelle dargestellt an den vilkerwanderungs und merowmgerzeztltchen Funden des
siidwestlichen Ostseeraumes. H. Geisslinger.
Mitteldlterliche Funde aus einem Brunnen von Buda. 1. Holl.
Mitteldlterliche burghiihel (motten) im nordlichen Rheinland. M. Miiller-Wille.
Roman Imperial coinage, Vol. vi. C. V. Sutherland.
Roman Imperial coinage, Vol. vii. P. Bruun.
Gravestone inscriptions of Co. Down (Ulster-Scot Historical Society).
Guide to reporis of the Royal Commission on Historic Manuscripts 1911-1957 (3 vols.).
West Cambridgeshire (RCHM England).
Fieldwork in local history. W. G. Hoskins.
Norman Britain. H. Loyn and A. Sorrell.
Cheshire under the three Edwards. H. J. Hewitt.
The Civil Wars in Cheshire. R. N. Dore.
Place names and population. Scotland (General Register Office, Edinburgh).
Scottish pageantry. A. Mackie.
Scotland, 1689 to the present (Edinburgh History of Scotland, v). W. Ferguson.
The Romans in Scotland. O. Thomson.
The golden age of Northumbria. H. E. Davidson.
The days of James IV of Scotland. W. Stevenson.
U



300 | PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY, 1968-9

The Jacobite rising of 1745. W. Stevenson.

Scotland in the days of Burns. H. Shapiro.

Edinburgh in its Golden Age. W. Ritchie.

A Border woollen town in the Industrial Revolution. K. McKechnie.

Glasgow and the tobacco lords. M. Nichol.

A last voyage to St Kilda. A. McGregor.

Island saga. M. A. Scott.

Morvern transformed: a Highland parish in the 19th century. P. Gaskell.

Glen Fincastle, 1841-1901 (Dundee College of Education).

Glasgow. J. R. Kellett.

East Kilbride: a history of the parish and village. T. E. Niven.

The course of Irish history. T. W. Moody and F. X. Martin.

Irish folk custom and belief. S. O Suilleabhain.

Weights and Measures (London, Science Museum).

Numbered postmarks of Scotland, 1. J. Douglas.

Packhorse, waggon and post. J. Crofts.

Horse drawn carriages. Scottish railway locomotives. Glasgow’s trams. Scottish cars. Ship models.
Engineering. (Glasgow Museum of Transport).

The English fur trade in the later middle ages. E. M. Veale.

The Scottish periodical press, 1750-1789 (1931). M. E, Craig.

The fortified house in Scotland, Vol. tv. N. Tranter.

The architecture of Glasgow. A. Gomme and D. Walker.

Chédteau Gaillard: Studien zur mittelalterlichen Wehrbau~ und Siedlungsforschung, 1.

Novrdiske ler-jords-huse. S. Risom,

English medieval graffiti. V. Pritchard.

Furniture in England: the age of the joiner. S. W. Wolsey and R. W. P. Luff.

Thomas Chippendale and his patrons in the north (Leeds Museum).

English country pottery in York museum. P. Brears.

Masterpieces of glass (British Museum).

Occupational costume in England, 1000-1914. P. Cunnington and C. Lucas.

The cut of womenr’s clothes, 1600-1930., N. Waugh.

Patterns of fashion, c. 1860-1940. J. Arnold.

Rapiers. E. Valentine.

Royal sporting guns at Windsor. H. L. Blackmore.

Tools and tillage, Vol. 1.

Budstikken, 1959-1964.

Ethnologia Europaea, Vol. 1.

Agriculture (London, Science Museum).

Agricultural implements of the Roman world. K. D. White.

The open fields (3rd ed.). C. S. Orwin,

The agricultural revolution. E. Kerridge.

The English dairy farmer, 1500-1900. G. E. Fussell.

Agriculture and dairy husbandry (1850). J. Jackson.

Agrarethnographie. Veroffentlichungen des Institut fiir Deutsche Volkskunde, Bd. 13.

Arbeit und Volksleben.

Deutsches Jahrbuch fiir Volkskunde, Bd. 1 & 2.

Holzgerdt in seinen Urformen. R. Peesch.

Atlas over Svensk folkkultur. S. Erixson.

Atlas over Borups agre. A. Steensberg.

Friihgeschichiliche Siedlungs- und Wirtschaftsformen im Siidwestlichen Norwegen. O. Renneseth.

L’attelage: le cheval de selle, 2 vols. (1931).

The history of Scottish forestry, 2 vols. M. L. Anderson.

Scottish Peat Surveys, Vols. 1-4 (1964-8).

Fishing gear of England and Wales (Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries publication). F. M. Davis.

Scottish fishing craft. G. Wilson.

More Scottish fishing craft and their work. G. Wilson.
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How to make and set nets. J. Garner.

Life and tradition in the Yorkshire dales. M. Hartley and J. Ingilby.
The Hatchett diary. A. Raistrick (ed.).

The glass industry of the Weald. G. H. Kenyon.

Leather craftsmanship. J. W. Waterer.

British planemakers from 1700. W. L. Goodman.

Olielampen i den vestlige verdens Kulturomrade. H. Schroder.

The canals of Scotland. J. Lindsay.

U2



Meetings of the Society

Monday 9th December 1968, at 5.30 p.m., Professor S. PiGGOTT, B.LITT., D.LITT.HUM., F.B.A.,
F.S.A. in the Chair.

A Ballot having been taken, the following were elected Fellows:
Michael L. Ansell; Rev. Dom William W. Bayne, 0.s.B.; Alan Carter, F.L.A.; David Victor Clarke, B.A.;
Michael Barry Cottam M.A.(HONS.) (St. Andrews); Graham Donald, p.r.c., H.W.C.; Francis Benson
Dunbar, B.ARCH., A.R.LB.A., A.R.I.A.S.; Ian Fisher, B.A. (Oxon.); Andrew Gibb, M.A.; Leslie Irving Gibson;
Edward J. B. Irving, AM.LE.E.; James Brian Kenworthy; Mrs Mildred Dick Rania, A.A.(SOC.), F.AS.;
David William Robertson Ridgway, B.A.; Peter Saunders; Alexander Thom, PH.D., D.SC., LL.D.(Glas.),
M.A.(Oxon.); Miss Lisbeth M. Thoms; Ian Alexander Varrie, F.A.C.C.A.; Miss Marion Banfield Walker,
M.A.; Miss Alice Erskine Watson.

The following Communication was read:
Crescentic Jet Necklaces of the British Bronze Age, by Mrs Winifred Coutts, M.A., F.S.A.SCOT.

Monday, 13th January 1969, at 5.30 p.m., Professor S. PIGGOTT, B.LITT., D.LITT.HUM., F.B.A., F.S.A.,
in the Chair.

The following Communication was read:
The Agricola in its relation to Scotland, by R. M. Ogilvie, M.A., D.LITT., F.5.A., Balliol College, Oxford.

Monday, 10th February 1969, at 5.30 p.m., Professor S. PIGGOTT, B.LITT., D.LITT.HUM,, F.B.A., F.S.A.,
in the Chair.

A Ballot having been taken, the following were elected Fellows:
Richard John Ardern; Thomas Bryden, M.A.; David Lewis Cawley; John di Folco, M.A.; John Fryer, B.A.;
Wayland William Skene Henry of Heatherbrae Yegr., B.sc.; Ranald William Leggett. .A.s.; John Mercer,
F.ILL., C.A.; Roger James Mercer, M.A.; Archibald Russell Murray, B.A. (Dunelm); James McBrearty,
F.1.0.B., M.INST.B.E.; Arthur Grant Macgregor; Ronald George Maclennan, D.P.E.(D), F.IS.T.D., F.R.H.S.;
Edward Jefferyies Price; Walter Macarthur Reid, B.A. (Oxon), LL.B.; Walter Willard Taylor, PH.D.
(Harvard), a.B. (Yale); Miss Janet Thomason ; Mrs Margaret Hannah Cornish Veitch; Frederick Richard
Woodward, B.sc. (London).

The following were elected Honorary Fellows under Law 5: .
Dr J-B. Colbert de Beaulieu; Gerhard Fischer; Dr A. T. Lucas; Professor Dr Hans Schonberger; Pro-
fessor Axel Steensberg.

The following Communication was read:
Draught Oxen in Britain, by A. Fenton B.A., M.A., F.S.A.SCOT.

Monday, 24th February 1969, at 5.30 p.m., BasiL C. SKINNER, M.A., in the Chair.

The following Communication was read: B
Water Wheels, by A. G. Thomson, B.sc., PH.D., Keeper of Technology, Royal Scottish Museum.

Monday, 10th March 1969, at 5.30 p.m., BasiL C. SKINNER, M.A., in the Chair.

The following Communication was read;
A Norse and Medieval Homestead at Skaill, Deerness, Orkney, by P. S. Ge]lmg, M.A., F.S.A., University
of Blrmmgham
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Monday, 14th April 1969, at 5.30 p.m., Professor S. PIGGOTT, B.LITT., D.LITT.HUM., F.B.A., F.S.A.,
in the Chair.

A Ballot having been taken, the following were elected Fellows:
William Ralph McClymont Adams; William W. Barr; Kenneth W. Macleod Bowers, DIP.L.C.A., F.R.S.A.,
L.S.I.A.; Miss Mary Forbes Brown, M.A.; Arthur Wemyss Buyers, M.A.; Robert Thomas Cheevers, F.A.S.;
James Colraine, M.A.; Rev. Terence Hope Davenport, A.L.A.M., F.R.S.A.; Philip Davies; George Blyth
Dorward; Ian Donald Drysdale; Alwyn John Newton James, B.A., DIP.E.; David Murray Learmont;
Peter George Noel Murray, F.R.S.A. ; James Charles Macnab, Younger of Macnab, 1.p.; Ian Beith McLaren
Ralston; Alexander John Rannie, M.A.; Jonathan Simon Christopher Riley-Smith, mM.A., PH.D.; Kandiah
Sitrampalam, B.A. (Ceylon); Walter Mackenzie Stephen, M.A., DIP.ED.; James Gerald Warner, M.A.;
Professor William Alexander Jardine Watson, M.A., LL.B. (Glas.), M.A., D.PHIL. (Oxon.).

The following were elected Honorary Fellows under Law 5:
Professor S. J. de Laet; Academician Professor Jan Filip ; Professor E. Vogt ; Professor Konrad Jazdzewski;
Dr J. D. Cowen.

The following Communication was read:
Laboratory Archaeology — Current Activities of the National Museum Research Laboratory, by H.
McKerrell, PH.D., A.R.I.C., F.S.A.SCOT.

Monday, 13th October 1969, at 5.30 p.m., Professor S. PIGGOTT, B.LITT., D.LITT.HUM., F.B.A., F.S.A,,
in the Chair.

A Ballot having been taken, the following were elected Fellows:
Alexander Scott Adamson; Theodore Martin Allan, M.8., cH.B.; Henry Robert Barton, M.A.; William
Keir Campbell; Alistair Bryce Gibson Cowper, A.L.A.; James Wilson Chambers, B.SC., M.B., CH.B. (Glas-
gow), F.R.IC., F.R.C.P. (Glasgow), F.C.PATH.; Richard T. Claydon; Rev. Gerard Mark Dilworth, 0.s.B.,
M.A., PH.D.; Robert Willard Yates Sanguszko Formhals, LL.B., J.D., D.C.L.; Katharine Agnes Fraser, M.A.;
Mrs Evelyn Buchanan Halley; Guthrie Hutton; I. A. Kinnes; Mrs Edith Josephine Marnie, L.R.AM.;
Archibald Maynard; Andrew Mushet, M.A. (Glasgow) ; Aidan David Somerled Macdonald, B.A. (Cantab.);
Edmund Edwards McKinnon, N.D.A., $.D.A., ALAGR.E.; Colonel James Haldane Calder Macleod,
C.ST.J., T.D., D.L., M.A.; Thomas Hugh Price; Mrs Violet Pritchard; John Karran Qualtrough; Michael
Ridley; Rev. Matthew Robertson, L.TH. (Aberdeen); Thomas Stevenson Swan, F.R.G.S., A.F.C.S.; Charles
Henry Taylor; Rev. John William Tyler, A.p.; David Bruce Walker, D.A. (Dundee), A.R.LB.A., A.R.LA.S.

The following Communication was read:
Cups-And-Rings and Similar Rock Art in Southern Scotland and Elsewhere, by R. W. B. Morris, B.L.,
F.S.A.SCOT.

Monday, 10th November 1969, at 5.30 p.m., Professor S. PIGGOTT, B.LITT., D.LITT.HUM., F.B.A.,
F.S.A., in the Chair.

The following Communication was read:
Development of Bronze Age Metallurgy in Scotland, by J. M. Coles, M.A., PH.D., F.S.A.SCOT.

MINUTES OF THE ANNIVERSARY MEETING OF THE SOCIETY OF ANTIQUARIES OF SCOTLAND, HELD IN
THE LIBRARY ON MONDAY, IST DECEMBER 1969 AT 4.0 P.M., PROFESSOR STUART PIGGOTT, B.LITT.,
D.LITT.HUM., F.B.A., F.S.A., PRESIDENT, IN THE CHAIR.

The Minutes of the last Meeting were read and approved.
Mr J. G. Dunbar and Mr C. Martin were appointed Scrutineers of the Ballot for Office-Bearers.
The Secretary read the following Report by the Council :

Annual Report

The Council herewith submits to the Fellows of the Society its Report for the year ending 30th
November 1969.
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Fellowship. During the year the Society gained 89 new Fellows and lost 38 (14 through death, 6 by
resignation and 13 through lapse of subscriptions; 5 failed to complete their election). There were 3
reinstatements and 10 new Honorary Fellows were elected. The Roll now comprises:

Honorary Fellows 20
Corresponding Members 1
Fellows 1,279

1,300

which shows an increase of 10 Honorary Fellows and 55 Fellows during the year.

Meetings

Regular Meetings. The Anniversary Meeting was held on 30th November 1968. Monthly meetings
then continued till April 1969 and were resumed on 13th October 1969,

Extra Meeting. An extra meeting was held on Monday 24th February at which A. G. Thomson,
B.SC., PH.D., Keeper of Technology, Royal Scottish Museum, spoke on Water Wheels.

Rhind Lectures. The Rhind Lectures for 1968-9 were delivered in March 1969 by Professor Dr
Hans Schénberger of the Romisch-Germanische Kommission des Deutschen Archieologischen Instituts
on The Roman Frontier in Germany in the Light of New Research.

Excavation and Research. Grants have been made to the following from Society Funds for Excava-
tion and other Fieldwork for the season 1969.

Dr F. Celoria Fraoch Eilean Castle, Loch Awe.

Dr J. M. Coles Mesolithic Site, Morton Farm, Tentsmuir, Fife.

J. Colvin Greig Castle Point, Troup.

P. S. Gelling Viking & Medieval Site, Skaill, Deerness, Orkney.

L. J. Masters Neolithic Cairn, Lochhill, New Abbey, Kirkcudbrightshire.

Miss D. Marshall Neolithic Site, Glendaruel.

Alex Morrison Structural Remains at Turrerich Farm, Glen Quaich, Amulree, Perthshire.

Dr J. N. G. Ritchie = Passage grave and Cairn, Achnacreebeag, Connell, Argyll.
DrJ. XK. S. StJoseph Roman Military Sites from Strathearn to Strathmore.

Abstract of Accounts. An Abstract of the Treasurer’s Annual Accounts is exhibited for inspection
by Fellows in the Library.: Copies were available on application, as announced in the recently circulated
Council billet. An abbreviated abstract of accounts was circulated to all Fellows.

Editor’s Report. Volume 100 of the Proceedings, the first issue to appear in the new format, is in an
advanced state of preparation. A considerable amount of material is on hand for inclusion in volume 101.
The Society gratefully acknowledges the financial aid it has received from H.M. Treasury in respect of
papers submitted for publication by members of staff in the Ministry of Public Building and Works, the
National Museum of Antiquities and the Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments
. of Scotland. Mr G. S. Maxwell has decided, with much regret, to resign from the Editorship; he gratefully
acknowledges the help and support of the Editorial Committee during his term of office, and pays parti-
cular tribute to the work of the Assistant Secretary and Mr 1. G. Scott.

The Society is most grateful to Mr Maxwell for his valuable work as Editor. It has been fortunate
in securing the services of Dr J. X. W. P. Corcoran as the new Editor.

The Report was unanimously approved on the motion of Mr R. B. XK. Stevenson, seconded by Dr
K. A. Steer. :

The Treasurer then made his report regarding the funds of the Society for 1968-9 and read the
Auditor’s docquet.

Treasurer’s Report

The Accounts for the past year again show that the Society continues to prosper financially, and
with the same measure of support from the Fellowship it should be possible to meet the increased ex-
penses which may be anticipated over the coming years.

It will be seen from the Abstract of Accounts that the General Fund of the Society, which takes care
of day-to-day expenditure and income, shows an excess of Income over Expenditure for the year of
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£1,197 - a further sum of £314, recovery of tax on subscriptions paid under Deed of Covenant, has since
been received and refund of S.E.T. payments — some £130 — is still to be recovered. When this has been
received the Income for the year will be approximately £300 higher than last year.

This figure, however, includes £63 surplus received on the sale of the new Index to volumes 25-48
of the Proceedings, so perhaps a fairer average increase for the year would be between £200 and £250.

Ninety-two new Fellows elected and paid-up joined during the year and it is pleasing to note that
over a one-third of these were under 30 years of age — a very healthy sign — and it is hoped they will make
the fullest use of all the facilities the Society can offer.

Interest and dividends received show a good rise largely due to increased Savings Bank interest on
a somewhat heavier balance maintained. The drop in the amount received from Subscribing Libraries
should right itself in the present year when arrears due from Libraries have been recovered.

Turning to Expenditure, economies effected in the Treasurer’s section are reflected in the Accounts
and the cost of volume 99 of the Proceedings is much down on the previous year’s double volume — it must
be noticed here that nearly the whole of the cost of the blocks for volume 99 has been charged in the
previous year, so the surplus of £1,197 is swollen to that extent.

It is to be expected that higher costs will have to be met in connection with the Society’s productions,
and while it should be possible to maintain the present high standard of presentation, it will have to be
paid for — at present this is possible.

Turning to the specially earmarked funds — the Excavation Fund, after a transfer of £265 provided
from the General Fund, shows an excess of Income over Expenditure of £315. Grants voted totalling
£182, however, were not applied for until after the close of the financial year and two Grants have so far
not been claimed at all. In all 10 excavations were assisted.

The Chalmers-Jervise Fund has an annual income of about £70-£140 every two years, and the
expenditure biennially is about £18 on advertising and administration. The prize offered of £50 every
other year has not been attracting entrants, and the Council have proposed to increase the amount of the
prize to £100 — if this can be done legally.

During the year the Society’s Investments were reviewed by its Brokers who recommended the sale
of Rank Organisation shares held in General, Excavation, Rhind and Bannerman Funds, and the purchase
of British American Tobacco, Imperial Chemical Industries, Sears Holdings ‘A’ and Carrington and
Dewhurst shares. The Finance Committee considered the proposals and decided to follow the Broker’s
advice. The switch has not turned out well as the Brokers freely admit, for the shares sold have actually
gone up, whereas of those purchased three have dropped, and one has shown a slight improvement.
Whilst taking into account the profit made on the sale, the Society overall has not lost anything in the
sequel, yet it has not profited as it might have done from the gain in value of the Rank shares.

The results were, however, disappointing and the Brokers were asked to explain their reasons for
advising a switch which has turned out so much to the Society’s detriment. They have replied giving what
appear to be sound reasons, and adding that despite appearances the Stocks now held were, in fact, all
market leaders, which in time will fully recover lost ground.

The Bequests of Dr A. O. Curle and Dr William Angus show no interest added this year. The funds
in both cases are held on Deposit Receipt where interest will be accruing until such time as we need to
uplift them.

The Society received during the year a legacy of £250 from the late Mr J. M. Davidson of Glasgow —
it has not yet been decided how to employ this money.

The Society also received from an American Fellow, Mr Sheldon P. Fay, a gift of £50 to be applied
in furthering the excavation at Birrens.

The Accounts were then approved on the motion of Mr B. P. Lenman, seconded by Mr G. H.
Collins. :

The President thanked the Treasurer on behalf of the Society.
The Ballot having been concluded the Scrutineers found and declared the list of the Council for the
ensuing year to be as follows:

President Professor S. Piggott, B.LITT., D.LITT.HUM., E.B.A., F.S.A.
Vice-Presidents H. Fairhurst, M.A., PH.D., F.S.A.
Lt.-Col. R. L. Hunter, T.D., B.SC., M.LMECH.E., F.S.A.
K. A. Steer, M.A., PH.D., F.5.A.



306 | PROCEEDINGS OF THE SOCIETY, 1968-9

Councillors

o

Secretary
Treasurer
Ex-Officio Members of Council

Ronald G. Cant, M.A.

W. F. Cormack, M.A., LL.B., W.S.

A. Fenton, B.A., M.A.

S. H. Cruden, A.R.I.B.A., F.5.A.

A. A. Woodham, B.sC., PH.D.

. P. Lenman, M.A., M.LITT.

. D. Thomson, C.M.G., 0.B.E., M.A., LL.B.

iss A. S. Henshall, M.A., F.S.A., F.M.A.

. N. G. Ritchie, M.A., PH.D.

. H. Hendrie, M.1.M.E.

. B. Taylor

. W. B. Morris, B.L.

asil C. Skinner, M.A.

. H. T. Harris, B.A.

R. B. K. Stevenson, M.A., F.5.A. (Keeper of the National Museum of
Antiquities of Scotland)

James S. Richardson, LL.D., H.R.S.A. (Society Representative on Board
of Trustees for the National Museum)

Miss Anne S. Robertson, M.A., D.LITT., F.M.A., F.S.A. (Society Represen-
tative on Board of Trustees for the National Museum)

B.R.S. Megaw, B.A., F.5.A. (Society Representative on Board of Trustees

- for the National Museum)

Professor A. A. M. Duncan, M.A. (Society Representative on Board of
Trustees for the National Museum)

J. X. W. P. Corcoran, M.A., PH.D., F.S.A. (Editor)

w

!

s

The following Fellows died during the year 1968-69:

Elected
Rev. J. M’Cormick Campbell, M.B.E., I.P., 0.C.F., 45 Waverley Gardens, Glasgow, S.1. 1934
Major A. F. Cockburn, M.BE., R.E., The Old Rectory, Netherbury, Dorset. 1919*
G. E. Eades, M.A., L.C.P., 29 Eversley Road, London, S.E.19. 1924
R. J. A. Eckford, Summerhill, Grange Road, Moffat, Dumfries. (Corr. Member) 1955
J. B. Himsworth, r.R.S.A., 31 Chelsea Road, Sheffeld, 11. 1947
Professor D. B. Horn, M.A., D.LITT., 8 Pentland Avenue, Edinburgh, 13. 1964
C. B. C. Hunter, Coigach, 16 Briar Road, Newlands, Glasgow, S.3. 1944*
Peter Scott Jackson, Upper Lodge, Bere Hill, Whitchurch, Hants. 1967
B. W. J. Kent, F.5.A., Tatefield Hall, Beckwithshaw, Harrogate. 1907
G. F. Lillie, 9 The Linn, Kelso. 1966
J. Leslie McIntosh, M.A., The Gelly Mill, Banff. 1962
G. Murray, M.A., 10 New Winton, Tranent, E. Lothian. 1960
J. A. Rennie, Ballintran, Cromdale, Grantown-on-Spey. 1959
Miss Alison Stewart, B.A., Powis House, Logie, Stirlingshire, : 1968
R. Wotherspoon, Westwood, Upper Drummond, Inverness. 1954

s

* Life Fellow.

The following have intimated their resignation during the year:
Shena, Lady Aitchison; James Edward Barlow, A.R.LB.A., M.T.P.I.; C. Carter, Mm.sc.; R. J. Macdonald;
George G. McWhannell; E. J. Redshaw.

The President drew the attention of the meeting to the proposed alteration of Laws, a copy of
which had been circulated to all Fellows. He explained that the purpose of the change was to ease the
task of future Presidents, although he himself would complete his full term of five years of office. Most
similar Societies had reduced the period of office of their Presidents to one of three years and this would
bring the Society into line with current practice. It should also make the finding of future Presidents easier.
He then put the proposed alteration to the vote and the alteration was carried unanimously.
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Law 12 is therefore altered as follows:

For the words ‘“The President shall be elected for a period of five years’ are substituted the words
‘The President shall be elected for a period of THREE YEARS'.

The President then announced that there would be five speakers, presenting items of news briefly.
They were:

1. Mr B. C. Skinner The Brown Portrait Drawings of Founder Fellows of the Society.
2. gf_ i ‘2 (S:?;TaCk } A Roman Distance Stone.

3. Mr L. Fisher A Pictish Symbol Stone from Perthshire.
4. Dr Hugh McKerrell Thermoluminescence dating of Pottery.
5. Professor Stuart Piggott Reconstructing a Celtic Chariot.

At the conclusion of the Meeting, sherry was served to Fellows and Friends.



